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INDEPENDYENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Report on the Ina A> Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Arvind Lifestyle
Brands Limited (“the Company"”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2018
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Change in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these ind As
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the

Act.

This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls; that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and tompleteness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstaterment, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
oolzin reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selecled depend
the auditor's 3udgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
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misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reascnableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 315t March, 2018, and its loss (including other comprehensive
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b} In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31%
March 2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

{fy  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controis over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure B".

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
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our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

I The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its Ind AS
firancial position in its Ind AS financial statements;

ii. Provision has been made in the Ind AS financial statements, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if
any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii.  There have been no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417W

vl S b

CA. Chokshij Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No. 100892

Bangalore
May 3, 2018
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND
AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARVIND LIFESTYLE BEANDS LIMITED

Reieried to in Parayizph 1 undel the neadinig “"Report on other iegai and regulatory requirenients”
of our Independent Auditer's Report of even date,

(1)

(it)

(ii)

{iv)

(v
L)

Sy
AUES

(2) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management
during the vyear in accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our
opinion provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
We are informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable properties and thus disclosure under clause
(i)-(c) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management and the discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records were not material having regard to the size of the
Company, and the same have been properiy dealt with in the books of account.

The Company has not granted secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189
of the Act. Ceonsequently, requirements of clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable. .

:In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
~shas not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or made any
-investment covered under section 185 of the Act. However, the Company has advanced
loans or given guarantees or provided security or made invesurnents covered under section

186 of the Act. We are of the opinion thatl provisions of section 186 of the Act have beern
complied with.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 te 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and ruies framed thercunder. No order has been
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
india or any Court or any other Tribunal.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act in respect of the Company’s
product. Consequently, requirement of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
apolicable,

%

{a} The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth
Tax, Zoods and Service Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custem, Duty of Excise, value
added tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
intormation and explanations giver to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
cuistanding statutory dues were in arecars g2 el Marchi 31, 2018 for a period of more than
si» manths from the date they became pavabie.
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{b} Following amounts have not been depuosited as on March 31, 2018 on account of any

dispute:
Nature of the Foture of the Amount Rs. FPeriod to which Forum where matter is
Statute dues the amount Fending
relates
Sales Tax Act Sales Tax 996,450 1998-1999 High Court
2,425,111 | 2001-02 to 2004- | High Court
F
! 236,186 20[?0—01 Deputy Commissioner
! 2,549 2001-02 Deputy Commissioner
140,000 2002-03 Appellate Tribunat
624,751 2005-06 Additional Commissioner
3,877,683 2005-06 Assistant Commissioner
6,282,355 2005-06 Deptity Commissioner
533,922 2006-07 Appellate Tribunai
869,603 2007-08 Assistant Commissioner
62,227,602 2008-09 Deputy Commissiaoner
15,013,442 2009-10 Deputy Commissioner
80,450,216 2009-10 Joint Commissicner — Appeals
30,466,158 2010-11 Deputy Commissioner
56,697,147 2010-11 Joint Commissioner - Appeals
1 25,541,456 2011-12 Deputy Commissioner
26,205,814 2012-13 Appeliate Tribunal ]
i 91,437 2012-13 Assistant Commissioner
i 670,985,841 2012-13 Deputy Commissioner
| L 1,071,444 2013-14 Assistant Commissioner
| | 4,197,094 2013-141}):0 2015- | High Court N
i 463,673,532 2014-15 Assistant Commissioner
! Central Excise Act | Excise Duty 11,603,064 2002-2003 to Assessing Officer
2003-2004
158,000 |  2006-2007 | Commissioner of Central Excise
100,000 2006-2007 CESTAT o o
Textile Committee E?;Sie Committee | © 094,000 2006-2007 CESTAT - S
orovmt rons | O s ae000 | AR 202K epr romuna
Income Tax Act ggﬁrlg:duction at 10,117,073 - 2010-11 gg;wer:ii;smner of Income Tax -
14,839,090 | 3011-12 Egg}er::;ssmner of Income Tax
er_6’172’540 2012-13 Egg;l’;’lllgbli)nef of Incorne Tax
- 4,796,460 2013-14 XSS;EESIOH@ of Income Tax
B 236,220 B W2014_15 gggjar;sli;ssmner of Income Tax ;
2015-16 Commissioner of Incorne Tax - '

Lo e

i 946,500

Appeais

(il

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks.
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

To the best of our knowiedge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer. However, the term loans obtained during the year were, prima facie, applied by
the Company for the purpose for which they were raised, other than temporary deployment
pending application.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no managerial remuneration has been paid/provided.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Consequently, requirements of clause (xii} of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and the detailis have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any preferential alictment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Consequently,
requirements of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations.
given to us, the Company has not entered inte any non-cash transactions with directors or
perscns connected with him.

According to the nature of the business, the Company is not required to be registerad under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417W/&

el bl

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No. 100892

Bangalore
May 3, 2018
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ANNEXURE "B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARVIND LIFESTYLE BRANDS LIMITED

Report on the Irternai Financiai Controis under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial contrels over financial reporting of Arvind Lifestyle
Brands Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls aover Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI}”. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial infoermation, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”} and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicabie to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial

statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financiai
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India”.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417W

opall b £

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No. 100892

Bangalore
May 3, 2018



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limlted

Staternent of cash flows for the vear ended March 31,2018

Y;é.vtmﬁ Kear ended
Partiribue. M3 20 Nargly 312087
. Riipdes Rupeey,

A Operating activitics

Profit/ (Loss) Before taxailion (£1,93.59.772) 14,18,27.563
Adjustments o reconcile profit before 1as 16 net cash Fows
Depreciation JAmoitization £.04,73.81.153 8923270614
Interest Income (2.27.07,358) {1.03.39,219)
interest and Other Bormowing Cost 67,10,44,783 84.603,14,037
Provisicn for Bad Debry 260345987 -
Provisioa for donbtful debls end advances (ae) 512,40 25.60.000
Provision for Litigation/Disputes 6,97,02,713
Fixed Asgets wrilteq off 09,75,037 966,528
(Profit¥Less on Sale of Tangiblé/Intangible assers flS.Sd.‘)’]U} f11.135615)
Share basod payment cxpense 48.25,393 26,07,757
1,86,54,27, 503 1.74,25,32,502
Operating Profil before Working {apitaf Changes L74.57,27,731 . LB8,3760.065
Wanrking Capital Changes. :
Chaages in lnveatories {38,02,05.135) (2,31,20,96,245)
Chenges in mrade payabies 1.65.23.53,189 178.21,90,957
Changes in othes current ligbilities (595,719,337} {6.80,50,965)
Changes'in other finzndial lighilities 2030.714,257 304,44 063
Changes in provisions 2,86,75,63% 309,01 ,503
Changes in loans and advances (2.60,17,930) 83,23,110
Chimges ia trade recejvables {3.64,50,62,580) (2,30,85.04,519)
Chaoges io other current psseis 1.0 40,662 {48.74.44.181)
Changes iu other finsacisl assots, 16.56,518 (1831.69,915)
Changes io Other Bank Balances B 26.31.68% (260,314,322
Net Chonges it Workdng Capital 2.19,19.20,433) (3,73.37,40,504
Casir Grnerated from Operations (44,52,92,702) (1.84,22.80,439)
Dheect Taxes paid (et of Incame Tax wefund) 1,04,35,729 {4,66,01,766}
Net Cash [rom Operating Artivilg {43,48,56,9713) {1,89,6582,205)
B- Cash Flow rone Tnvesting Activitics

Furehase of Property, Plant & Equipmentimiangibie asser. (1,22,1549827 (956081947
Sale of Propecty, Flaul & Equipment 1,18.65.058 3868718
Sate under Busiocss Transfer Agrecment - 253,25 05.027
Changes i Capital Advances {60.16.142) {60,6%.495)
Interest Income 2,10,04,028 1,341,146

[1,1946,95,083) 1,58,76.4 1,445

Net cash flaw frgnt Tnvesting Activites

Cash Flow fram Fimanciog Activilies
Lsste of Sliare Capital

~

25,88,17.200

20,76.19.030

Securities Mreniitin peeeived 2231182760 2572330770
Chaages iu lonyg term Borrowings (26.26. 08913 (64.95,43,318)
BR15,197 (97.51,66.70%

Changes fn shoe (erm bonowings
Inteerst and Olier Borvowing Cos: Paid

{64,72,19,536)

(52,72,94.961)

Net Cush flow from Finaacing Activliics

1,55,84,50,703

31,69.92.812

Net uerease/(Deercase) in cash & cash Equivalents {3,10,62.353) e 3052112
‘Cash & Cash cquivalent af the begianing of the p o 5,81,07,353 51055.24]
Cask & Cash equivalent-at the end of the pericd 2,8045,1100 59107353

Fhiticulast: YearEntied

Marck 312017
N . .. :Rypeés
Cash and cash equivalealy comprise oft {Notc 7)

Cath on J{and 15946 15,803
Balances with Banks 2.50,29,054 5.90,88,5438
_Cuh ol cash lguivalems L8045,000 5.91,07%5.1

The accampapying notes ane an integral pan of the fnancial statessents

Notes:

| Thecash flow statement bas been prepared wnder the.indirect meiliod 25 Set aut in Indian Aceounting Steadard {Ind AS 7} sistement of cash flows.

2 Purchase of property, plant & SQUipmEn * imsngible asscls inclids moveaien? of capital wark-in-progress during the year,

As per out report of sven date
Fuz Sorab S. Engineer & Co.

Chartered Aucountents
Finu's Regisimtion No. 110411 i
'

e/l dler-

CA. Chokshi Shreyes B,
Paroer

Membershp No. 100592
Place ; Basgalore

Dhate - May a8

For and on behaif of the board of directors of
Arviid Lifestyle Brands Limited

Soreshd.
Munaging Dircetor
DiN: 03033110
Prace- Bengalore
Date : May 3,208

Hanstan §
ChiefFinancial Officer
Place- Bangalore

Daie - May 32018

Jayeshs K. Sheh
Dircetor

ThN. 000DE 349
Pleee Bapnmlore
Dote . May 32046

{iampany Secretary
Places Bangalore
Date - Mey 3,015



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31 L2018

A. Equity share capital

B. Other equily

Balarce Amuini

] ) Note 14

As at April I, 2016 33,63,51,000
Issue of Equity Share capital 20,76,19,030
As at March 31, 2017 54,39,70,010
Issué of Equity Share capital 26,88,17,200
As 3t March 31, 2618 81,27,87,230

Attributable to the equity holders Rupees
Pyrticnlsrs ; oo _Rostrves andBirplus _ . ‘Potalequity ¢
Capital. Sééuﬂﬂksﬂprmﬂunl-ff Conitelbyifon Retabred B ;
Regatie  of L [romiParent Earnings
I for ESOQP
Mot " | " Mete¥2 | Mols Note 12
Balance as at April 1, 2016 59.05,31,059 4,77,70,00,000 - (3,70,78,29,711) 1,65,97,01,348
Profit/ {Loss) for the Year - B 26,24,20.811 26,24,29,811
Other comprehensive income for the Year - {51,04,230) (51,04,230)
Total Comprehensive income for the Year - - - 25,73,25,581 25,73,25,581
Issue of share capital {Refer Nate 11} 2,57,23,80,770 2,57,23,80,770
Contribution: from the Holding Cormpany for
Employee Stock Options - N 26,17,757 - 26,17,757
Balance as at March 31, 2017 59,05,31,059 7,34,93,80,770 26,17,757 (3450504, 130)  4,49,20,25,456
Balance as at April 1, 2017 59,05,31,059 7,34,93,80,770 26,171,757 (3,45,05,04,130) 4,49,20,25,456
Profit/ (Loss) for the Year - {4.09,09,181) (4,09,00,181)
Other comprehensive income for the Year {1,16,02,668) . (1,16,62,668)
Total Comprehensive income for the Y ear . - - (5,25,11,849) (5,25,11,84%)
Issue of share capital (Refer Note- 11) 2,23.11,82,760 2,23,11,82,760
Contribution from the Holding Company for
Empioyee Stock Options - -« 48,25,394 - 48,25,3194
Balauce as at March 31, 2018 59,05,31,059 9,58.05,63,530 74,43,151 (3,50,30,15,979)  6,67,55,21,761

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemenis.

As per our iepori of even date

For Sorab S, Engineer & Co,
Chartered Acccuniants
Firm's Repgisiration No, § 10417W

’ ™

€.A. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Mesmbership No. 100892
Place : Bangalore

Date : May 3,2013

For and on behaff of the board of directors of

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited

%

|

.~
Surcsh J.
Manaping Director
OIN: 030331 10
Place- Bangnlote
Date : May 3,20(8

Ayt J

Kannan §

Chief Finangial Officer
Flace- Bangalore

Date  May 3,2018

/

\

Jayesh K. Shah
Direetor

DIN: 0009824

Pace- Bargalore

Dar- - Aay 1,2008

L

<
B.S. Wiry-Kumay

Cumpany Secretary
Prace- Babyalore
raw  May 3,208



Arvind Lifestyle Brands 1.lmited
Bulance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

Partfeatary e g T T RGts Aooar T Agaf
March 31208 Margli 31, 2017
: Ropres Rupees
ASSETS
|..Men-curreni assefs
{a) Property, plant and equiptcnt 3 2.70.34 54 888 2,51.59.29.742
(b} Capital work-in-progress 3 24,33,400 47,100
(c} Intzngible assets [ 26.26,%0.066 33.97.20.762
(d) Financial assets
(i) Investments 7 1.50.000 1.50,000
{ii) Loany 7 34,41,137 14,665,688
(1ii) Other financial assets 7 1.81.50,62,650 1.71,50.58.985
(e} Deferred 1ax assels (net} 15 2,00.33,58.581 1.91.86.35.765
(8} Other non-cument assets % 4.49,95.951 4,29.79.809
Total non-current assets 6.84.05.86,673 — 555,309,885 851
H.Curreat assets
(a) Inventories 9 7.10.10,77.044 6,72.01.71.909
{b) Financial assals .
{1) Trade reecivables 7 6.28,36,17,181 2.65,88.93,1288
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 2,80,43.000 5.91,07,353
(iii} Bank balznce other tlan (i) above 7 13,97.81.210 16,24,33,599
{v} Loans 7 294,353,418 53,89.937
(v) Others financial asseis 7 21,06,96.553 31,R7.66,146
(e} Current (ax assets (net) g 10,12.56.030 11.16,91,759
vd} CHher current assets 8 1,24,02,22:568 1.27,01.63,230
Totr! current asscis 15,1541.29 704 11.30.68.17.121
Total Asgets 21994716377 17.86,08.05 972
EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
Equity
Gquity share capifal 1 81,27.87,230 54,39,70,030
Gther equity 12 6.67.55,21,761 4,49.20,25 456
Total equity 7.48,83,08,9%1 . 5,03,59.95.486
LIABILITIES
i Neq-curvent liahilities
t2) Finracisl liabililes
{i} Borowinigs i BO.0S.60.056 1.52,64.90.287
{3} Other finangial lahshtses 13 41,73,77.180 44,02,90,068
(b} Long-terty provisions 14 £3.55.63.154 8.69,67,666
Fatal non-current liahilities 1.3535 06390 2.05,36,58.021
{L.Curreit Hahflities
{a} Firancial Labilities
{i) Borrowings i3 4,01.82,73,087 4,00,94_53 895
{iit Teade payables 13 7.40.65,12.154 5.75,43.58.965
(iii} Oter financial Jinhalities 13 1.41,53,09,556 70.2’.?,?].84_]
{5} Other current fiabilities i3 2033,73,720 16.29,55,062
{c) Short-term provisions 4 10:90,12.479 4.14,14:702
Toial curreat abilities 13,15.29.00,996 19.77,11.52.465
‘Fotal Equity and Liablliies 21.99.47.16.377 17,56.08.03.572
Sumunary of significant accounting podicies 3 e -

‘The necompanying notes are an mtegraf part of the financial statements.
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Arvind Lifesiyle Braods Limited
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Rurfichilarg Nnles Yearepded Year-cadek
Maich-21.2018 Manch 31,2057
- N Ripey Rupiee
lncone
Revenue from oparations )
Sale o Pioducts it 15,46.30,67 675 25.26,56,06,446
Sale if Senvices 14 42,87,83,87% 25,37,18,40
Cperting Income 12 41.97.10¢ 5.04.84 375
Revenue from opervtions 15,89,6048,650 25,/53,93.08,761
{hbrer income 17 3,52.86,117 3,62,90,25%
Total lagome (F) 25.93,13.34 767 25,57,61,00,014
Expenses
Cost of raw iafs and I8 1,78,13,23) +,77,02,05%
Purchase of stock-in-trade 34 3,26,20,17 420 12,74,35,60,519
Changes in iventories of imshed goods, work-in progres; and stock + -
in-trade - {Increase} F Dacreasr -0 (43,58.09.202) (.87.21.208)
Employce benc fits expense 21 2.61,26,97 890G 2,2631,46,303
Finaoce costs 2 67,10,44,788 84,63,14,037
Depreciation and amontisation expense oy 1,04,73,83,153 £9.23,37014
Other expenses 24 8,82,95,57,259 £,69,81,43,7G8
Telal ¢xpenses (H) 26,05.07,34,539 25434473451
Profltf (Lasz) before exceptional items and tax (1M1 1) {11,93,99,770) 14,16,27,563
Excopticnal ilems {TV) -
Proflt £ (Loss} before tax (V) = {11,93,99,7712) 14,16.27,563
Tax expense
Cumeat tax 15 -
Shert Provision for earfier penods a5 - 28,20,720
Defeared tax 25 (7.34,90,594} (£2,36.22,968)
Tatal tax expense (V1) {7.84,90.581) (12,08,02.248)
Proﬁb‘{Loss) for the year (Vi) = (V-V1} {4.09!09!131! 26&4&%81[
Other comprelienuve fncoime
Other comprebensive income not tn be reclassificd to profit
or less iz subscquent peripds:
Runeasurement gatns /1lossess un derined bens6i plans 13 (1,78,34,893) (78.065.58%)
Income tax effect s $2.32,225 27,048,358
(1.16,02,668) {51,04,230)
Total othrer comprehiensive income for the pevipd, uet of lax (Viil) £1,16,02,668) (51,04,230)
Totat comprefiensive invon:e for the peviod, met of tax (VER-V T ()] {5.25,11,849) 15.73.25 581
Eaming per equity share
[nominas value per share Rs.10/- (March 31, 20:7: Rs.10r- ))
Basic and Diluied kH {0.60) 707
Summary of sign:ficant accounting policies 3

The accompanying uoles are an integra part of the financial stalements.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING. PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1.

Corporate Information

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited (“the Company’) is engaged in the business of distribution and Retailing of

‘Readymade Garment Apparels and Accessories. The brands portfolio of the Company includes Domestic

and International brands like US Polo, Nautica, GANT, GAP, TCP, Cherokee etc. It also operates apparel
value retail stores UNLIMITED. Both Brands and Unlimited retail presence touches 800+ stores and 14.2Mn

Retail space.

The Company is a Subsidiary of Arvind Fashions Limited and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Naroda Road,
Ahmedabad - 380025.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
May 3, 2018.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

2.1 Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind AS™) as
issued under the Companizs (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

The Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards specified in Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“Indian
GAAP”) and other relevant provision of the Act.

2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the followings:

o Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments); ‘

¢ Derivative financial instrumenis measured at fair value;

¢ Share based payments;

e Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;
s Valuein TJse



3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its financial
statements consistently to all the periods presented:

3.1. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current

classification.

An asset is current when it is:
¢ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
o Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e ltis expected to be seitled in the normal operating cycle;
o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Tt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for-at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable,
it is assumed to be twelve months.

. Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated
by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors
(including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing
circumstances. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the
results are known / materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred
after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.
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3.3. Business combinations and gnodwill

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has elected to apply
Ind AS accounting for business combinations prospectively from 1 April 2015. As such, Indian GAAP
balances relating to business combinations entered into before that date, including goodwill, have been
carried forward with minimal adjustment.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the -
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Company elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiabie net assets.

Business combinations between entities under common control are accounted for at carrying value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquusition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, ‘the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact
that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and
liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

» Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind
AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.,

» Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share — based payments arrangements of the Company entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquire are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based
Paymenzts at the acquisition date.

> Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard.

# Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual
term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired
right.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisifion date. This includes the separation.of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair valoe recognised
in profit or loss. If the contingen( consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured al subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
wdeniifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the tair value of the net assets acquired is in excess



3.4.

of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Commpany re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all
of the asscts acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase,
the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting
is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period,
or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement
period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date,

Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement of such transaction and on
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate
are recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that arc measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the.
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recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in QCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at the end of each reporting
period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability
Or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial staiements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
o Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value

measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) ai the end of

edch reporting penod.
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The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair valtue
measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such as asset held for

sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties. Involvement of external
valuers.is decided upon annually by the management after discussion with and approvai by the Company’s
Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external
valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis,
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is

reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.
o Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
¢ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
e DProperty, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date of transition
¢ Tinancial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accummlated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced af intervals, the Company recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of
an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision

are met.

Borcowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are

ready fo be put to use.
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Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their intended
use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation o property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets less residuzl
values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as prescribed under Pari C of
Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 except for Plant and Machinery, Leasehold Improvements,
Furniture & Fixtures and Vehicles.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are accounted for as
separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or over-the remaining useful
life of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation on Plant and Machinery, Leasehold Improvements, Furniture & Fixtures and Vehicles is
provided on straight line basis over the useful lives of the assets as estimated by management based on
internal assessment. The management estimates the useful lives for Plant & Machinery at 5 years, Leaschold
Improvements and Furniture & Fixtures at 6 years and Vehicles at 4 years.

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases

The detenmination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is clagsified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Finance ieases that transfer
to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the
present value of the mimmum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless they
are direcily attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the
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3.9.

Company’s general -policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
operating expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term except the
case where incremental lease reflects inflationary effect and lease expense is accounted in such case by
actual rent for the period.

Company as a lessor :
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease except the case where incremental lease reflects inflationary effect
and lease income is accounted in such case by actual rent for the period. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the Statement of Profit and Loss, in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer
from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables
at the Company’s net itvestment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease,

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the respective asset, All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differénces {o the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capiialised and expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangibie asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite usetul life are reviewed at Jeast at



the end of each reperting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation
Job Workers” Network Value, Vendors® Network Value and Distribution Network Value have been

amortized on Straight Line basis over the period of five years.

Value of License Brands acquired under demerger scheme has been amortized on Straight Line basis over
the period of ten years.

Software is depreciated over management estimate of its useful life of 3 years.

3.10, Inventories

Inventories of Raw material, Stock-in-trade and Packing Material are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

¢ Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

» Stock in Trade: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

All other inventories are valued at cost. The stock of waste is valued at net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
3.11. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An assei’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the
Company. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered imnpaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken inio account, if



available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or
other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for a property
previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the
impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised iimpairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.12. Revenuc Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company,
the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, and the revenue can be reliably measured. regardless
of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties
cellected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its
revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arranigements as it has pricing latitude
and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of geods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

goods have passed to the buyer, which generally coincides with delivery of goods. Revenue from export
sales are recognized on shipment basis. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable including excise duty, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts
and volume rehates,

Sale of gocds — customer loyalty programme (deferred revenue)

The Company operates a loyalty points programme which allows customers to accumulate points when
they purchase the products. The points can be redeemed for free products, subject to a minimum number of
points being obtained. Consideration received is allocated between the product sold and the points issued,
with the consideration allocated to the points equal to their fair value. Fair value of the points is determined



by applying a statistical analysis. The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue
when the points are redeemed.

Sales Return
The Company recognises provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis

of the margin of the sales.

Rendering of services
Revenue from store displays and sponsorships are recognised based on the period for which the products
or the sponsors’ advertisements are promoted/ displayed. Facility management fees are recognised pro-rata

over the period of the contract.

Gift Vouchers
The amount collected on sale of a gift voucher is recognized as a liability and transferred lo revenue (sales)

when redeemed or to revenue (sale of services) on expiry

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
assct. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Conpany estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the coniractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar nptions) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
income in the statement of profit or loss.

Insurance claims
Claims receivable on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company 1s reasonably certain

of their ultimate collection.

3.13. Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition -

of the financial assets.



Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.c., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

* Financial assets at amortised cost

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive iricome (F VTOCT)

* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

»  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost ift
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
oufstanding,

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premiwmn on
acquisition and fees or costs that arc an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applics to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC]I is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial asset is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL is a residual category for {inancial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC]I, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value



-through profit o1 loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismaich’), The
Company has.not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Alter initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or ‘

- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred contro! of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Company could be required to repay.

(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management
determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in
the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant fo its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next repoﬁ'ing period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any
previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.



Original Revised Accounting treatment

classification classification

Amortised cost { FVTPL Fair value is measured - at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortized cost and fair
value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross

carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new
gross carrying amount.

Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value.
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always
heen measured at amortised cost.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.
Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
to P&L at the reclassification date.

Amortised cost | FVTOCI

FVOCI Amortised cost

FVTPL FVTOCI

FVTOCI FVTPL

{v) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected. credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

€Xposure.

» Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposifs, trade receivables and bank balance

o Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
¢ Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS
11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing component
» Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS
11 and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing component, if the Company applies
practical expedient to ignore separation of time value of money, and
e All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, if recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has notl increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for



impairment loss.. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent pericd, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the. entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the

reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

s  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases
when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the
Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

s Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected in a separate line under
the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below.

o Financial assets measurced as at amoriised cost, contract assets and lease receéivables: ECL
is preserwed as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in
the balance sheet The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit visk to be identified on a timely

basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (PQCI) financial assets,
i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

b) Financial Liabilities
(1) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments

in an effective hedge, as appropriate.



All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial
liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the issue of the {inancial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee confracts and derivative financial instruments,

(i) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as.described below:

° Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses.on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial datc of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in owr credit
risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

° Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR

amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when,
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged
or cancelled or expired.




When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is freated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

¢} Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its
foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-imeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and
as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arisfng from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if
a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
o Pair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes 1n the fair value of a recognised asset
or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
o Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability ora highly probable
forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk
mianagement objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the
hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the
financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item atéributable to the risk hedged is.
recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as finance costs.



For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is
amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR
amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases
to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged 1item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent
cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable fo the hedged risk is
recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and loss.

(ii) Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash -
flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for its exposure
to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is
recognised in {inance costs and the ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised
in other income or expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit o1 loss when the hedged transaction affects profit
or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast
sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial Hability, the
amounts recognised as OCT are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or
liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover
(as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm
commitment is met,

d) Ofifsetting of financial insiruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet

if there is a currently enforceable legal nght to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.14. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
~with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.



Fer the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and. cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as-they are considered an integrai part of the
Company’s cash management.

3.15. Export incentives

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports
based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

3.16. Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Dieferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounis for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

©  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability-in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the-
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

» Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests 1o
Joint arrangemeitts, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlied and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresecable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

¢ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liubility in a transaction that is not a business combmation and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable prefit or foss;



* Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investiments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items arerecognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or-directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax asscts against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent that there is.
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the
period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes
tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The
Company reviews such tax credit asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset o the extent the
Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
Deferred tax includes MAT tax credit.

3.17. Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards,
exgratia, performance pay etc. and the same are recognised in the period in which the employee renders
the related service.

b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company’s approved provident fund scheme, superannuation fund scheme, employees’ state
insurance fund scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution paid/payable under such schermes. The
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contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised during the period in which the
employee renders the related service,

(ii) Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retirement medical benefit schemes are
Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit
plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at
the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from
the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

¢) Other long term employment benefits:
The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present
value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is
reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

d) Termination Benefits :
Termination benefits such as compensation under voluntary retirement scheme are recognised in the
year in which termination benefits become payable.

3.18. Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
fransaciions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made
using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in
equily, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits
expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s



best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will vltimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair vaiue. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense
had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is
cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining ¢lement of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

3.19. Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss atiributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares.

3.20. Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (fegal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, and if is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-lax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.



4. Significant accounting judgementis, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcornes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

4.1. Significant judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

4.2

-

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition
The Company assesses its revenue arrangement in order to determine if its business partner is acting as a

principle or as an agent by analysing whether the Company has primary obligation for pricing latitude and
exposure to credit / inventory risk associated with the sale of goods. The Company has concluded that
certain arrangements are on principal to agent basis where its business partner is acting as an agent. Hence,
sale of goods to its business partner is recognised once they are sold to the end customer.

Estimates and assumption
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

date, that have a significant risk of causing a materia! adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when

they occur.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination.of the
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension inereases. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
iy these assumptions. All assuinptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies
of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond
with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. The underiying bonds are further reviewed for
quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the
discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

‘The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change
oniy af intervals in response to demographic. changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future
inflation rates for the country.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 30.
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair valueés. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 34 for further disclosures.

Allowance for uncellectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing
of the receivable balance and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is
grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables
are written off when management deems them not to be collectible. The carrying amount of allowance for
doubtful debts is Rs.9,53,45,365/- (March 31, 2017: Rs.7,49,99,378/-).

Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a binomial
model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment
{ransactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them. For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the liability needs to
be measured at the time of grant. The expenses recognised for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in Note 38,

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has Rs. 9,83,18,163/- (March 31, 2017: Rs. 9,83,18,163/-) of tax credits carried forward. The
Company also has Rs. 110,20,31,845/- (March 31, 2017: Rs. 123,24,06,467/-) of unused losses available
for offsetting against future taxable income. The Company has taxable temporary difference and tax
planning opportunities available that could partly support the recognition of these credits as deferred tax
assets. On this basis, the Company has determined that it can recognise deferred tax assets on the tax credits
carried forward and unused losses carried forward.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 25.

Revenue recognition — Customer loyalty program reward points

The Company estimates the fair value of points awarded under the Customer loyalty program by applying
statistical techniques. Inputs to the model include making assumptions about expected redemption rates,
the mix of products that will be available for redemption in the future, expiry of loyalty points and customer
preferences. Such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. As at 31 March 2018, the estimated
liability towards unredeemed points amounted to approximately Rs. 4,22,58,072/- (March 31, 2017: Rs.
2,81,24,899/-).



Intangible assets
Refer Note 3.9 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of Intangible assets has

been disclosed in Note 6.

Property, plant and equipment
Refer Note 3.6 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of
Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years.and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 7 : Finaucial assets

7 (a) Investments

reh 31, 2017

In Rs,
Investment in government securities
National Saving Certificates 1,50,000 1,50,000
{Lodged with Sales Tax and Govermment Authorities)
Total Investments in government securities 1,50,000 1,50,000
Total Investments 1,50,000 1,50,000

7 (b} Trade receivables
Parti

Current
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good 6,28,36,17,181 2.,65,88,93,188
Doubtful 9,53,45,365 749,99 378
Less : Allowance for doubiful debts {9,53,45,365) (7,49,99,378)
Total Trade and other receivables 6,28,30,17,181 2,65,88,93,188

Allowance for doubtful debts
Company has provided allowance for doubtfull debts based on the lifetime expected credit loss model using provision matrix.

Movement in allowance for doubtful debt :

el 31, 2017

s - InRs, o InRs.
Balance at the beginning of the year 7,49,99,378 7,49,99,378
Add : Allowance for the year 2,03,45,987 -
Less : Write off of bad debts (net of recovery) - -
Balance at the end of the year 9,53,45,365 7,49,99,378
Write oft
During the period, the Company has made no writc offs of trade receivables and it does not expect to receive future cash
flow or recoveries from collection of cash flow previously written off.
7 (¢) Loans
Pa March 31,2017
. InRs
Unsecured considered good
Non-current
Loans to employees 34,41,137 14,66,688
34,41,137 14,66,688
Current :
Loans tn employees 2,94 33418 53,89,937
2,94,33,418 53,89,937
Total Loans 3,28,74,555 68,56,625
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

7 (d) Cash and cash equivalent

"As at March 3

2017
1t Rs.

Balance with Bank
Current accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 76,69,054 5,78,38,548
In Deposit Account 2,03,60,000 12,50,000
Cash on hand 15,946 18,805
2,86,45,000 5,91,07,353

Total cash and cash equivalents

7 (&) Other bank balance

In Deposit Account
Held as Margin Money*

15,95,72,116

15,89,59,804

Lodged with Sales Tax Department 2,09,754 34,73,795
Total other bank balances 15,97.81,910 16,24,33,599
Total cash and bank balances 18,78,26,910 22,15,40,952

* Under lien with bank as Security for Guarantee Facility

7 (f) Other financial assets

Nou-current
Security deposits
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months

1,80,49,68,544
1,10,94,106

1,71,41,92,110
8,660,875

1,81,60,62,650
Current
Security deposits

1,71,50,58,985

Considered Good - Security deposits 2,83,16,583 3,18,16,583
Doubtful 2,35,00,000 2,00,00,000
Less Allowance for Doubtful Deposits (2,35,00,000) {2,00,00,000)
2,83,16,583 3,18,16,583

Income receivable - 1,00,00,001
Accrued Interest 34,17,914 17.14,584
Receivable for Business transfer Agreement - 13,25,08,026

Mark to market of derivative financial instruments 30,095 -

Insurance claim receivable 1,10,22.317 2,00,62.489
Qther Receivables 16,79,09,644 12,26,64,463
21,06,96,553 31,87.,66,146

Taotal financial assets 2,062,67,59,203 2,03,38,25,131

Praovision for doubtful deposits

Company has provided provision for doubtful deposits based on the lifetime expected credit loss model using provision matrix.

Movement in provision for doubtful deposit:

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at. March 31, 2017
In Rs. In Rs.
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Add : Provision made during the year 51,12,740 -
Less : Write off of doubtful deposits (net of recovery) (16,12,740) -
__B_g_[unge at the end of the year _ 2,35,00,000 2,006,00,000

M



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Noftes to the Financial Statements

7 (g) Financial assets by category

Particulars FVTPL FVOCIT Amortised Cost
March 31,2018

Investments

- Government securities - - 1,50,000
Trade receivables - - 6,28,36,17,181
Loans - - 3,28,74,555

Cash & cash equivalents
Other Financial Assets

18,78,26,910
2,02,67,59,203

Total Financial assets - - 8,53,12,27,849
March 31,2017

Investments

- Government securities - - 1,506,000
Trade receivables - - 2,65,88,93,188
Loans - - 68,56,625
Cash & cash equivalents - - 22,15,40,952
Other Financial Assels - - 2,03,38,25,131
Total Financial assets - - 4,92,12,65,896

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 36
Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Noie 34 and fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment

are in Note 35.

Note 8 : Other current / non-current assets

Non-current

Capital advances 4,89.95,951 4,29,79 809
4,89.95,951 4,29,79,809
Current
Considered Goad - Advance to supphiers 30,19,08,162 78,06,62,066
Doubtful - Advance to suppliers 8,55,59,602 8,55,59,602
Less : Provision for doubtful advances {(8,55,59,602) (8,55,59,602)
30,19,08,162 78,06,62,066
Export incentive receivable 66,93,106 76,777,780
Prepaid expenses 4,53,25,860 7,09.22,751
Other Current Asset 78.75,92,928 41,11,00,633
GST Receivable 9,87,02.512
1,24,02,22,568 1,27,03,63,230
Total 1,28,92,18.519 1,31,33,43,039

Provisien for Doubtful Advances

Movement in provision for doubtful advances:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

3 In Rs. In Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year 8,55,59,602 8,52,55,413
Add : Provision made during the year - 25,60,000
Less : Write off of doubtful advances - (22,55811)
’ 8,55,59,602 8,55,59,602

Balance af the end of the year




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw materials

Raw materials and components 4.31,35,510 4,28,22.510

Raw materials in transit 63,84,327 51,32,348
By- product -
Stock-in-trade 6,97,40,18,706 6,58,41,19,504
Stock-in-trade in transit 1,52,23,619 3,02,06,220
Packing materials 6,23,14,882 5,78,91,327
Total 7,10,10,77,044 6,72,01,71,909

Note 10 ; Current Tax Assets (Net)

Tax Paid in Advance (Net of Provision) 10,12,56,030

11,16,91,759

Total 10,12,56,030

11,16,91,759




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 11 : Equity share capital

'?érticuiars_

No. 6f 'sila'i;és. g

Authorised share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 8.,50,00,000 85,00,00,000 7,50,00,000 75,00,00,000
Issued and subscribed share capital _

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 8,12,78,723 81,27,87,230 5,43,97,003 54,39,70,030
Subseribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs.1{ each 8.12,78.723 81,27,87.230 5,43,97.003 54,39,70,G30
Equity Share Suspense Account (Share appiication)

Total 8,12,78,723 81,27,87,230 5,43,97,003 54,39,70,030

11.1. Recenciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

Particd

S No.of shares: ‘Rs: of share: in
At the beginning of the period 5,43,97,003 54,39,70,030 3,36,35,100 33,63,51,000
Add :

Shares issued during the year 2.68,81,720 26,88,17,200 2,07,61903 20,76,19,030
Quistanding at the end of the period 8,12,78,723 81,27,87.230 5,43,97,003 54,39,70,030

11.2. Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of shares referred to as-equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Anmual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation,
the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their

sharehoiding.

11.3. Shares held by holding company

No. of shares

Holding Company - Arvind Fashions Limited (along

with nominges)

8,12,78,723

81,27,87,230

5,43,97.003

F1.4. Number of Shares held by each sharcholder holding more than 5% Shares in the company

Holding Company - Arvind Fashions Limited (along
with. nomninees)

8.1278,723

100.00%

5,43,97,003

160.00%

11.5. Shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant te contract without payment being received in cash (during 5 years immediately preceding March 31,
62.85,000 shares of Rs. 10 each were allotted as fully paid up in the year 20£3-14 pursuant to the scheme of arrangement without payment being received in

cash.

11.6. Shares reserved for issue under options
Refer Note 38 for details of shares 1o be issued undor aptions

11.7. Objective, policy and procedere of capital management, refer Note 37



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 12 : Other Equity

As at March 31, 2018

Note 12.1 Reserves & Surplus

Capital reserve

Balance as per last financial statements 59,05,31,059 59,05.31,059

Add. Additicn for the year - -

Balance at the end of the year 59,05,31,059 59,05,31,059
Securifies premium account

Balance 2s per last financial statemenis 7.34.93,80,770 4.77,70,60,000

Add: Addition during the year 2,23.11,82.760 2,57,23,80,770

Balance at the end of ile year 9,58,05,63,530 7,34,93,80,770
Contribution from Parent for ESOP (Refer Note 38)

Balance as per last financial statements 26,172,757 -

Add: Contribution received during the year 48,25,394 26,17,757

Balance at the end of the year 74,43,151 26,17,757

Surplus in statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial statements (3.45.05.04,130) (3.70.78.29.711)
Add: profit for the year ' (4,09,09,181) 26,24,29,811
Add / (Less): OC1 for the year {1.,16,02,668) (51,04,230)
(3,50,30,15,979) (3,45,05,04,130)
Less: Appropriation - -
Balance at the end of the year (3,50,30,15,979) (3,45,05,04,130)
Tefal Other equity 6.67.55,21,761 4.49.20.25,456

Note 13 : Financial liabilities

13 (a) Long-term Borrowings

Long-term Borrewings (refer note I to IT below)
Non-current portion

Secured
Tenn loan from Banks 130.06,83.630 T7.68,97.250
Unsecured
Non Convertible Debentures 49.08,82.426 74.95,03,037
80,05.66,056 1,52,64,00,287
Current maturities
Secured
Tetm loan from Banks 48.70.15.433 27,25, 43004
Tenn loan frem Financial Institutions and others [0.81,451
Non Convertible Debentures 24.95,34,400
73.68,49,833 27,36,24,515
Total tong-term borrowings 1,53,74,15.889 1,80,00,24,802
Shori-term Borrowings {refer note 11 below)
Secured
Working Capital Loans repayable on demand from Banks 2.43.05.91,532 2,33.90,92.493
(mchiding channel financing)
Unsecured )
Under Buyer's Credit Amangement 24,18,91.751 30.83,58.210
Iniercorporate Deposits - From Related Parties 54,5138 805 1,36.21,03.192
From Others 6,50,959 -
Commercaal Paper 30.00.00.000 .
Working Capital Loans repayable on demand trom Banks 30,00,00,000 -
Total shori-terin borrowings 4,01,82,73,087 4,00,%4,53,895

Total borrowings 5,55,56,88,976 5,80,94,78,697




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Siatements

Details nf Term Loans

Loans of Rs 74,713,539, 761 is secured againsi fist charge over the entre fixed assets of the company both present and futute and second charge is
crealed ever the entire stock, receivables and other curren: assets of the company excluding stocks of Nautica Braud.

Secured Loans of Rs, 74,73.59,763 are guaranteed by Arvind Limited being the Ultimate helding Company and Secured Loans of Rs.
32,58,14,562 are additionally guaranteed by Arving Fashions Limited being the Holding Company.

Hire. Purchase Loan from Banks and Others of Rs 4,03,39,300 are secureid by hypothecation of related vehicles

Rate of lnterest and Terms of Repayment

Terms of Repayment from Balance

Particulars As on March 18 Range of Interest (%) sheet date

From Banks
Rupee Loans

] Repayable in quarterly instalments
74.73,59,763 8.30% to B.65% ranging between 4 to 26 with
moratoriuin peried in some of the loans

. Monthly payment of Equated Monthly
0, 0, B
Hire Purchase Loan 40339300 8.50% to 9% Instaltests begimsing

from the month subsequent fo taking the
loans

Details of Unseeured Borrowings- Non Convertible Debentures
Non Convertible Debentures of Rs 74,97,16,826 are bearing intesest of 1(35% per amnum by 750 Non Cenvertibk Debentures of face value
1,000,000 each are redecmable at par in 3 equal annual instalments starting fom July 27, 2018

Details of Short Term Borrowing
Nature of Sccurity
Cash Credit and Other Facilities from Banks
Loans frem banks are sccured by:
i First charge over entire stacks, receivabies and other current assets excluding stocks of Nautica Brand
and second charge over entire fixed assets of the Company both present and future ineluding but not limited
to in relation to textile division at almedabad etc.
H. Working Capital Loan of Rs 243,05,91,531 is secured by Corporate Guaraniee given by Arvind Limited, the ultimate holding
company and Working Capital Loans of Rs 227.83 82,790 arc additionally secured by Gaurantee »f Arvind Fahsions Limited, the
holding Company.

Rate of Interest
i. Loans from banke cammy interest rates rauging from 0.5% to 1.5% above base rate.
ii. Buyers Credit carry interést ranging from 2.25% o 5.04%
iii. Inmter Corporate Deposits carry interest @-5.00% per dnnum,
iv. Working Capital Loans carry interest ranging from 6.76% to 9.9%.
v, Commercial Paper carries interest rate.of 7.95%.

Unsecured Loans of Rs 30 00,00,000 is guaranieed by ‘Asvind Limited. the ultimate holding company.




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Kinancial Statements

13 (b) Frade payable

In Rs.

Current.
Acceptances
Dues to Micre, Small and Médium Enterprises
Other trade payable {(Refer note below)

1,64,04,85,913
28,92.27.625
547.11,98,616

1.07.91,63.909
29,82,92,590
4,37.71.02.466.

Total

7.40,69,12,154

5,75.45,58.965

2 Acceptance and Other trade payables are not-interest bearing and are normally settled on: 30-90 days terms

312017

n-Rs,

(a)} Principal amount and {he interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to any suppliees as at the end of accounting year;

(b} Interest paid during the year;

{c} Amount of payment made 10 1he supplier beyond the
appointed day during accounting year;

(d) Interest dwe and payable for the period of-delay in making
{e) Interest accrued and unpaid at the end of the accounting

(f) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, untif such date when the interest dues above are

28.92,27.625

1,87,46,845
2,13,22,30,820

5.63,33.634
5,63.33,634
5,63,33.634

33.21.96.604
165,720,726
1.80.49,17.178

3.39,04,034
3.3%.04,034
3.15.79.878

13 {¢) Other financial li

Non-current
Deposits from customers and others

Current

41.73.77,180

44,02 90,068

41,73,77,180

44,02.90,068

Current maturity of long term borrowings 73.68,49.833 27.36,24.515
Inferest accrued but not due 8,60,92.224 8.51.96.572
Interest accrued-and due 5,63,33.634 3.39.04.034
Payable 10 employees 24,34,82 48] 18,109,253,
Book overdrait 2,37,84,802 2,87.62.393
Payable in respect of capital goods 20,47.49,306 8,55,53.173
Mark to market of derivative finznciat instruments - 92,29.827
Other financial lizbifities 6.40,17,276 54,10,G74
1.41,53,09,556 70,27,71,841

Total 1,83,26,86,736 1,14,30,61,909

5
L 4




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
13 (d) Financial fiabilities by category

Particulars FVTPL FVOC] Amortised Cost

31-Mar-18

Bomowings 4,81.08,39,143

Tmde payable - 7.40.69,12.154

Other financial bablitizs 6,40,17.276
73.68.49,833

Current maturity of long fesm borrowings
Payable to employees 24,34.82,481
Deposits from customers and others - 41.73,77.180
Interest accrued and duc . - 5.63.33,634

Enlerest accrued but not dee 8.60,92.224
Payable in respect of capital goods 20.47,49.306
Mark to market of denivative financial instruments - - -
Book overdraft - - 2.37,84,802
Total Financial tiabilities - - 14,05,84. 38,033
March 31, 2017

Bormrowings - - 5,53.58,54.182
Trade payable 5.75,45,58,965
Other financial liabilities - - 5410074
Current maturity of long tenn borrowings - - 27,36,24.515
Payable to employees - 18,i0,91,253
Deposils tron: coustomers ad others - 44.02,90,068
Interest accrued and due 3,39,04,034
Interest-acctued but not due - - 8.51.96,572
Payable in respect of capital goods 8,35,53,173
Mark to markel of derivative financial insiruments 92,29.827 -

Book averdraft - - 2,87,62,393
Total Financial liabilities 92,29,827 - 12,42.42,45,229

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Nete 36
Fair value disclosures for financial-assets and liabilities are in Note 34 and fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment are in Note 3.

Note 14 : Provisions

" As atMarch 31, 2017

Long-fcrm
Provision for employee benefits {refer Note 30)
Provision for leave encashment 7.40,27,780 5,69.57 462
Provision for Gratuity 6,15,35,374 3,00,10,204
13,55,63,154 8,69,67,666
Short-term
Provision for employee benefits (refer Note 30}
Provision for leave encastunent 91.83.6476 1,12,68,632
Others
Provisior for Wealth tax 146,070 1,46.070
Provision for fitipationsdisputed matters $.97,02,733 3,00.00,000
10,90,32,479 4,14,14,702
Total . 24,45,95,633 12.83,82,368

Provision for Litiganon/Disputes
The Group has made provistons for pending disputed matters in respect of Indirect Taxes Tike Sales Tax. Excise Duty and Custom Duty,
the liability which may arise in the tuture, ihe quantum whernof will be determined as and when the matters are disposed off

The wovement in the provision account is as under:

T

Batznce as per last financial siatements 3,00,00.000 3,00,00,000
Addition / Settlenient during ihe year (Net) 6.97.02.733 -
Balance af the end of the vear 9,97.02,733 3,00,00,000




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 151 Other current / Non-current liabilities

arch 31, 2018

’ l'"'.,‘ In Rs.

Current

Advance from customers 4.56.70,67% 1,60,33,180
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 11.54,44,969 21,87,94,983
Deferred income of loyalty program reward points { Refer note a below) 4,22 58072 2,81,24,899
Total 20,33,73,720 26,29,53,062

Deferred income of Loyalty Program Reward Poinis

The Company has deferred the revenue related to the customer loyaily program reward points, The movement in deferred revenue for those

L . IniRs.
Batance as per last financial statements 2,81.24,89% 4,34,69,627
Add: Provision made during the year (Net) 7.37.58.650 6,82.24,381

(Less): Redesnption made during the year {5.96,25.477) (8,35,69,109)
Balance at the end of the year 4,22,58,072 2,81,24,899




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 16 : Revenue from operations

201.@4:1,? )

In:Rs.,
Sale of products 25,46,30,67,675 25.26,56,06,446
Sale of services 42,87,83,875 20,37,18,740

Operating income ,

Export incentives 23,41,829 89,111,706
Miscellaneous receipts 18,55,271. 15,72,869
41,97,100 [,04,84,575
Total 25,89,60,48,650 25,53,98,09,761

Note 17 : Other income

interest income 2,27,07,358 1,03,39,219
Profit on sale of fixed assets (Net) 15,54,970 11,13,615
Exchange Difference (Net) 38,42.471 1.24,04,811
Miscellaneous income 71,81,318 1,24,32,608
Total 3,52,86,117 3,62,90,253

Note 18 : Cost of raw materials and accessories consumed

Stock at the beginning of the year 4,28,22,510 5,84,12,746
Add : Purchases 1,81,26,231 21,111,822

6,09,48,741 6,05,24,568
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 4.31,35510 4,28.22.510
Raw materials and accessories consurmed 1,78,13,231 1,77.02,058
Total 1,78,13,231 1,77,02,058

Note 19 : Purchases of stock-in-trade

Garmenis

13,26,20,37,420

12,74,55,60,519

Total

13,26,20,37,420

12,74,55,60,519




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited:
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 20 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade.

Stock at the end of the year
Stock-in-trade

6,97,40,18,706 6,58,41,19,504
6,97,40,18,706 6,58,41,19,504

Stock at the beginning of the year
Stock-in-trade 6,58,41,19,504 6,55,53,98,296
6,58,41,19,504 6,55,53,98,296
(Increase) / Decrease in stocks (38,98,99,202) (2,87,21,208)
Total (38,98,99.202) (2,87,21,208)

Note 21 ; Employec benefits expense

Salaries, wages, bonus, elc. (Refer Note 30)

2.22.81,58,299 1,93,25,70,079
Contribution to provident, gratuity and other funds 18,60,10,946 16,02,59,274
Wellare and training expenses 19,37,03,252 [6,76,99,213
Share based payment to employees-Expensese 48,25,393 26,17,757
Total 2,61,26.97.890 2,26,31,46,323

Note 22 : Finance cos{s

Interest expense - Loans
Term Loans

§,20,10,741 13,35,69,125

Cash Credit Facilities 8,96,22,200 6,53,84.573
Interest expense - others 38,20,24,576 46,98,78,529
Other finance cost 11.73,87,271 17,74.81,810
Total 67,10,44,788 84,63,14,037

Note 23 : Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on Tangibte assets (Refer Note 5} 91,10,31,i05 71,51,82,660
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 13,63,52,048 17.71,44,354
Total 1,04,73,83,153 89,23.27,014




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to-the Financial Statements
Note 24 ; Other expenses

T 2017-18

5.

5 . S InRs. . IR
Power and firel 30,50,37.366 30,60,12,749
Insurance 3.06,81,119 29492041
Processing charges 2,00,88,552 3,09,48,232
Printing, stationery & communication 114129717 11,68,51,124
Rent Expenses 2,41,70,40.828 2,37.75,61,088
Commission & Brokerage 97.53.77,504 91,36,94,260
Rates and taxes 4,71,77,300 11,27,51,223
Repairs :
- Building 1,19,42,913 1,04,02,815
- Others 50,38,27,605 45,17,60,188
Roayalty on Sales 83,46,52,368 90,64,75,345
Freight, insurance & clearing charge 27.29,89.269 25,84,19,743
Octroi 1,81,32,616 7.19.84,365
Legal & Professional charges 15,80,07,108 [1,07.87,206
Housekeeping Charges 9,90,98,599 9,54,91,447
Security Charges 10,87,64.949 10,81.,41,634
Computer Expenses 10.37,49,169 9,78,37,620
Conveyance & Travelling expense 17,91,53,326 21,14,72,218
Advertisement and publicity 95,13,94,223 1,02,47,53,407
Design Fees 17.83,924 54,72,150
Charges for Credit Card Transactions 12,12,61,507 [1,37,45.863
Packing Materials Expenses 9.25,56,707 12,47,48,606
Contract Labour Charges 84,84,20,959 80,35,38,120
Sampling and Testing Expenses 13.84,08,155 11,07.45,605
Director’s sitting feas 1,77,200 2,60,000
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) 51,102,740 25,60,000
Allowance for doubiful debts {note 7 b) 2,03.45,987 -
Provision for Litigation/Disputes (note 14) 6,97,02,733 -
Auditor's remuneration { Refer Note below) 87.09.000 65,80,000
Business Conducting Fees 1,08,60,408 54,71,866
Bank charges 4,23,07.213 4,37,03,316
Warchouse Charges 10,76,03.610 14,37,19,099
Loss on assets sold, demolished, discarded and scrapped 7,09,75,037 97,66,528
HVAC Charges 74127354 5.00,50,422
Miscellaneous expenses 6,50,54,194 4,29,45.428
Total 8,82.96,57,.259 8,69,81,43,708

Payment to Auditors (Net of taxes)

Payment to Auditors as

Auditors 52,00,000 35.80,000

For tax audit H,70,000 10,00,000

For Other certification work 20,438,020 10,00,000

) For reimbursement of expenses 2.90.,980 10,00,000
Total 57,09,600 65,80,000




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 25 : [ncome tax
The majer compaorient of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31. 2017 are :

2017-18:
In-R5.

Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax

Current income tax - -

Short provision related to earlier periods 28.20.720

Deferred tax

Deterred tax expensed{income) (7.84.94,591) {12,36,22.968)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (7,84,90,591) (12,08,02,248)

0CI section

Statement to Other comprehensive income (QOCl)
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year

Net loss/{gain) on actuarial gains and losses (62,32.225) (27.01,358)

Deferred tax charged to OC1 {62,32,225) {27,01,358)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017,
A) Current tax

Accounting profit/(loss) hefore tax fram continging.operations (11.93,99,772) 14,16.27.563
Tax g 34.944% (March 31, 2017: 34 608%) (4,17.23,056) 4,90.14,467
Adjustment

1,56.85,965 96,66,780

Other nen-deductible expenses
- (17.94.83.499)

Recognition of deferred tax assets not recognised in earlier period due o absence

of probabic certainty
Rate differences and other reasons {5.24,53,500) -
Ad the effective income tax rate of 65.74 % (March 31, 2017 -8§5.30%) (7,84,90,591) (12,08,02,252)

B) Deferred tax.

‘‘BalanceSheet”

Acgelerated depreciation for ta purposes 71.13,11,873 47.26,68,150 (23,86,43,723) (5.60,64.811)
LEffective Interest Method Tenn Loan (3.41.703) - 341,703 -
Impairment of Receivables/Advances{including allowance for ECL) - 5,60 61,53% 5,60,61,531 (72,43455)
Expendilure allowable on payment basis(43 B) 6,502,153 5.67,57.120 {83.35,039) {34,60.800)
Unused losses available for offsetling apgainst future taxable income 1.10,20,31.845 1.23.34,06 467 13.03.74.622  (1,20,03,34,775)
Impact of deferment of revenne, ntet of related cost - - . 1,08,05.98,77}
Linused tax eredit available for offsetting against-future taxable income 9.81.18.163 G.83.18.163 - {28,20,720%
Others. : 2,69,46,250 24,724,334 (2,45,21,916) 10,30,01 464
Deferred tax expense/(income) (8,47,22,816) (12,63,24,326)
Net deferred tax asseis/(liabilities) 2,00,33,58,581 £,91,86,35,765

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows

Deferred tax assets 2.00.37.00.284 1.91,94.05,090

Deferred tax liabilities (3.41,703) (7,69,925)

Delerred tax liabilitics (net) 2,01,33,58,581 1,91.86,35,765

Rs..
1.91.86.35,765 1.79,23,11.43%

-Reconcifiation ol deferred taxinssets 2

Opening batance as of April 1

Tax income/{expensc) during the period recognised in prof¥ or loss 7.84,90,591 12,36,22 968
Tai fncomeAexpense) during the period recognised in OCI 62,32,225 27,014,358
Clesing balazuce as at March 31 2,00,33,58,581 1,91,86,35,765

The Compaiy offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforreabie right to set off current-tax assets ang current
tax Habilities and fiie dzferred tax assets and deferred tax Jlabilitics relate to inconte taxes fevied by the smne tax suthority.



Arving Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 26 : Contingent liabilities

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2018

Year ended March 31, 2017

In Rs, In Rs.
Contingent liabilities not provided for
a. Bills discounted 7,87,65,657 3,77,34,896
b. Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts 6,66,41,931 2,79,02,209
c. Disputed demands in respect of )
Excise/Customs duty 18,61,064 18,61,064
Sales tax and VAT (Refer note 1 below) 2,01,01,14,304 1,56,36,18,913
Income tax 3,91,84,003 2.90,31,509
Textile Committee Cess 10,94,000 10,94,000
Provident Fund 75,60,000 75,60,000

Note

—

Disputed demand for Sales Tax and VAT includes demand raised mainly due to non-submission of various statutory forms to

appropriate authority. Subsequent to the demand, the Company has collected forms covering substantial amount of demand.
The Company is in the process of collecting balance forms and hence no provision is considered necessary for the same,
2 The Company does not expect any reimburesements in respacts of the above contingent liabilities.

Note 27: Capital commitment and other commitments

Capital conmmitments

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital

account and not provided for
Other commitments

20,32,51,896

19,10,52,988

Note 28 : Foreign Exchange Derivatives and Exposures not hedged

A. Foreign Exchange Derivatives

Nature of instrument Currency

In FC

Year ended March 31, 2018

In Rs.

Year ended March 31, 2017
In FC In Rs.

Forward contracts
Purchase USD

15,25,503

9,96,28,125 38,79,818

25,16,06,197

All derivative contracts stated above are for the purpose of hedging the underlying foreign CUSTENCY eXposure.

B. Exposure Not Hedged

Receivables UsD 1,69,159 1,10,24,921 74,241 48,14,505
Payable towards borrowings UsD 21.,94,680 14,30,38,284 8,90,261 5,77,33,420
Payable to creditors USD 28,96,265 18,87.64,080 14,06.411 9,12,05,757
EURO 1,68,030 1,35,78,1006 91,559 63,44,354

SEK 04,786 7,45,494 1,35,059 9,81,542




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes 10 the Financial Statements

Note 29 : Segment Reporting

The Company's business activity falls within a single primary business segment of Retaif Trade through Retail and Departmental
Store facilities. Accordingly the Company is  single segment company in accordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment".

Geographical segment

Geographical segment is considered based on sales within india and rest of the world.

¥

o1

Segment Revenuc*

a) In India 25,81,33,26,137 25,36,22,71,109
b} Rest of the world 8,27,22.513 17,75,38,652
Total Sales 25,89,60,48,650 25,53,98,09,761
Carrying Cost of Segment Assets** -

a) In India 21,98,36,91,456 17,85,59,91,467
b) Rest of the world 1,10,24,921 48,14,505
Total 21,99,47,16,377 17,86,08,05,972
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets**(@

a) In India 3,01,75,74,305 2,91,86,77.413
b) Rest of the world - -
Total 3,01,75,74,305 2,91,86,77,413

* Based on location of Customers
#*% Based on location of Assets

@ Excluding Financial Asscts and Deferred Tax assels.

Note:

Considering the nature of business of group in which it operates , the group deals with various customers including

multiple geographics.Conscquently, none of the customer contribute materially to the revenve of the group.
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited

b Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions :

Rupces

Purchase of Goods and Materials
Arvind Limited
Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Arvind Fashions Limited
Arvind Sports Lifestyle Limited
Purchasc of Fixed Assets
Arvind Limited
Sales of Goeds and Materials
Arvind Limited
Asman Investments Lunited
Anvind Fashions fimited
Saleof Fixed Asscts
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited
Arvind Fashions Limited
Rendering of Services
Agvind Limited-Royalty
Arvind Limited-Rent
Arvind Fashions Limited-Margin Income
Arvind Fashions Limited-Royalty
Arvind Limited-Shared service
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limiled-Commission Income
Arving True Bluc Lid-Rent Income
Arvind True Blue L1d-Commission Income
Arvind Ruf And Tuf Pvt Ltd-Comyuission Income

Receiving of Services
Arvind Limited-Agent Commission
Arvind Limifed-Rent
Arvind Limited- Site Maintenance
White Oceans LLP - Commission Exp
Interest Expense
Arvind Limited
Arvind Brands & Retait Limited
Arvind Envisof Ltd

Remuneration
Mr. Kannan Soundarajar

Others - Shared Services
Arvind Limited
Calvin Kiein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Linvited
Anvind Fashions Limited
Arvind True Blue Ltd

Busiess ‘Fransfer
Arvind Fashions Limited

Loan Given/{Repaid) (Net)
Arvind Limited

1s5ue of Equity Shares
Arvind Brands and Retai} Limited
Arvind Fashions Limited

Receivable in respect of Current Assets
Arvind §imited
Calvin Kiein Arving Fashion Private Limited
Arvind Fashions Liinited
Arvind Fashions Brands Limited
Arvind True Blue Lud
Arvind Beauly Brands Retail Private Limited

Payabie in respect of Eoan
Arvind Limiled
Anvind Enstsol Limited

Payable in respect of Current Liabitities
Arvind Limited
Arvinnd Beauty Brands Retail Private i.imited
Arvind Goodhill Suit
Arvind Fashions Limited
Arvind Rufand Tuf Pyt Ltd

15,77,29,007
44,800
2,24,87,37472

16,98,589
7,73,45,883

69,77,499

65,35,980

2,62,25,330
19,82,064
1,41,354
33,39,16,238
3,68,84,609
41,61,040
56,37,620
2,54,950
3.94,121

1,52,61,565

43,00,000
4,60,93,959
1,22,92258

6,82,59,992

15,98,140

30,23,413
2,46,97,000
2,85,39,568
7,75,36,262

24,86,951

1,35,19,26,213
2,50,00,00,600

8,66,08,025
£3,77,768

966,479
1,00,03,116

1,01,76,979
53,49,61,826

30,04,28,135
44,800

15,32,77.559
8,09,520

19,75,33,487
68,04,481
52,29,56,518
1,52,83,938

20,91,800

31,58,88.346
30,41,471

3,429

3,26,79,945
52,52,436

2,68,27.738.

9,84,99,151

3,74,52,8%9
50,40,000

20,21,40,237
2,00,10,608

1,08,54.210

71,61,439
5,64,93472
6,64,42,097

12,53,56,941

2,53,25,08,025
46,46,34,163

77,99,99,850
1,99,99,99,950

10,39,54,830
2,i8,68,902
63,41,42,302
75,261

1,36,21,03,192

30,20,34,672
4,31,04,444




Arvind Lifesiyle Brands Lbnited
Nates to the Financial Siawinats

v Transactivis aad Balances @

Towat Yewtars FabeiaT:

Transyctions

Purchase of Caxxds and Materials 15.72.29,007 19,75.23,447 522956518 44,800 HRAOF %)

Purchase of Fixed Asscis 16,598,389 20055800 - - - - - -
Sales of Goods and Materia] 77343883 1588848 AL ' - -

Salc of Fixed Assats - - - 3429 - -
Rendéring of Services £A1,92003 37932381 98452151 1.03.47,731 - . . -
RecavDng or Servives 55,5592 4259789y - - . . - . B
Interest Expense 682,59992 3,204,257 - 1598840 RE)(RTXCT) -

Other Exquenses-Sharad Servites 123417 761437 12.53.56.94¢ 35723519 661AL07 - 30493472 -

Business Transfer - - v 153258025 - . . - - -
Loan Given'{Repaid) (Na) 1.35,19.26.213 46.46,34,151 - - - - - - B

Issuc of Eyuity shares - - 2GRN 2779399800 - - - - - -

 ¥arch 313018

Balawces as af year end

Tradoand Otha Recvivable 8.66,08.025 LIS 83 - 634142302 1,23,47.363 43742205 218,68,9012
Recvivable(Payable) in rospeet +f Loans (E81,2%6.979) (1.36.21.63.192) (53,49.61,826) R
Trade and Other Payable: HL04 28 135 J0,26. 34673 LM TS 1.81;37.547 R54.320| 4.50,46,995

d Terms and cenditions of transactions with related parties

1} Transaction entered into with rejated party are made on terms equivelent io those that prevail i atin’s lengid transactions. Outslanding balances other thar loan given & taken at the yearend are unsecured and interest freg
and settlement ocowrs in cash.

2) Loans in INR 12ken from the related party carties interest tate 8% (March 1) 2816 : 10.25%1

¢ Tr with key p
Compensation of key managemen personnel of the Cg"rpany

Shon-term emplayee benefits . 1,05,65,868
Termination benefits- - 2.38,342.00
Share hased paymets -

Total campens ivn gnid to key management Et‘rsonncl 1,g§.s4,zm

The amounts disclosed in the'table are the amounts recognised us an expense during tne reparting pesiod related to key management personnet (excluding expense of post-employment mediez] benefits)




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Linited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 32 : Earning per share

Earing per share (Basic and Diluted)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders Rs. {4,09,09,181) 26,24,29,811

Total no. of equity shares at the end of the year Nos, 8,12,78,723 5,43,97,003

Weighted average number of equity shares

For basic EPS . 6,81,09,281 ‘ 3,71,27,337
For diluted EPS 6,81,69,281 3,71,27,337
Nominal value of equity shares Rs. 10 10
Basic earning per share Rs. {0.60) 7.07
Diluted earning per share Rs. (0.60) 7.07

Weighted average number of equity shares

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 6,81,69,281 3,71,27,337
Effect of dilution: Share options - -
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 6,81,69,281 3,71,27,337




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financral Statements

Note 33 : Lease Rent
Operating Lease

(A) Office Premises, Showrooms and other facility are taken on lease period of 1 1o 9 years with option of renewal.
The particulars of these leases are as follows

Future Minimum lease payments obligation or nor-cancellable operating leases:

Not later than one vear 33,53,15.411 65,32,54,413
Later than cne year and not later than five years 16,32,18,126 35,78,05,462
Lease Payment recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 2,35,40,44,618 2,34,01,92,02¢6

(B} Equipments are taken on operating lease for a period of 5 vears with the.option of renewal
The particulars of these leases arc as follows:

Future Minimum lease payments obligation on non-cancellable operating leases:

Not later than one year 6,24,88 474 (,23,02,392
Later than one year and not later than five years 15,55,29,317 21,72,73,465
Lease Paymen! recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 6,30,02,210 3,73,68,162

(C} Sub-lease income includes receipt towards office premises, and Sub-lease agreement is for a period of 60 months. Sub-lease income received (or receivable)
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss amounts 1o Rs, 10,82,064 (Previous Year Rs. 52,52,436)




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Finaricial Statements

Note 34 : Fair value disclosures for financial assets and financial liabilities
Set ot below is a comparnison. by class, of the canying amounts and fair value of e Company®s financial insiruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable

approximations ef fair vahuws:
Particulars’ : .

Financial assets

Investments measured al amortized cost 1.50,000 1.50,000 1,50,000 1,50,000
Other financial assets- derivative fmancial instruments 30,085 - 30,095 -
Total 1,80,095 1,50,000 1,80,095 1,50,000
Financial liabilities

Borrowings . 5,55.56,88,976 5,80,94.78,697 5.56,08,43,230 5,82,51,35,197
Other financial ligbilities - derivative financial instruments - 92,29 827 - 92.29,827
Total 5,55,56,88,976 5,81,87,08,524 5,56,08,43,230 5,83,43,65,224

The inanagement assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, other curremt financial assets, trade payables and other curreat
Tinancial liabilities approximate thew carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amouat at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following metheds and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

The fair value of borrowings and other financial liabilities is calculated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debts pn similar teems, credit risk and
remaihing maturities.

The discount for {ack of marketability represents the amounts that the Company has determined that market participants would take into account when pricing the
investments.

Note 35 : Fair value hierarchy
The followiny table provides the. fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assefs as at March 31,2018 and March 31, 2017
—r e - T VAo s

As-at March 31, 2018
Assets measured at fair value

Fair value through amortized cost investments

[nvestiment March 31, 2018 £.50,00C . 1,50,000
Other financiai assets -derivative March 31, 2018
financial instrumenis 30,095 30,095

As at March 31, 2017

Asscts measured at fair value
Fair value through amortised cost investments
Investment March 31, 2017 [,58,000 - 1,50,000

As at barch 3l,~20I8
Liabilities measured at fair value
Borrowings Murch 31, 2018 5,55,56,88 976 - 5.55,56,88,976

As at March 31, 2017
Liabilities disclosed at fair value

Borrowings March 31, 2017 5.80,94,78,697 - 5.%0,94,78,697
Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative financiai habilitics March 31,2017 92,290,827 229,827 -
[



(a)

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to 1he Financial Statements

Mote 34 : Financial fnstruments risk management sbjectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, cther than derivatives, comprise benowings and trade & other payables. The main purpose of these financiat liabifities 4s te finance the Company’s operations
and to sapport its operations The Company’s prineipal financial asseis include Investments. foans given, trade and other receivabies and cash & short-term deposits thar derive dwectly from its operations

The Company's activitics expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In order to winimise any adverse effects on the- financial perfermance of the. company, derivative financial instrumens, such 4
foreign exchange forward contracts are entered to Yedge ceriain foreigm cumency expasures and interesi rate swaps to hedge certain variable interesl rate exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for
hedging purpeses and pet as trading / speculafive instiuments.

The Company's risk management is carried out by a Treasury departnent under policies approved by the Board of dircctors. Comnpany’s treasury identifics, evaluates and hedpes financial risks in close co-
operation with the Company's operating units. The board provides wrilier principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and umvestiment of excess liguidity

Market risk

Market risk is the'risk that the fair value of futore cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuzate because of clianges in market prices. Market risk comprises three types ofrisk: intercst rate risk, currency
risk and ether price risk, such as commodily risk. Financia? instrumnents affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, Investments, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and derivative
financial instruments '

Within the various methodologies to analyse and manage risk, Company has implemented a system based on “sensitsvity analysis” on symmetric basis. This toe! enables the risk managers to ddentify the nsk
posttion of the entities, Sensitivity analysis provides an approximate quantification: of the exposure in the event that certain specified parameters were e bo met under a specific sel of assumptions. The risk
estimates provided here assume:

- & parallc] shifl of 50-basis points of the interest rate yield curves in all currencies,
- a simultaneous, parallel foreign exchange rates shift in whick the. INR appreciates / depreciates against all currencies by 2%

The potential econoinic. inpact, due to these assumpiians, is based on the accurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions and reflects estimated changes resulling from the sefisitivity analysis. Actual results
that are included in the S1atement of profit & loss may differ materially from these estimates due to.aciual developments in the global financial markets.

The analyses exciude the impact of movements in macket variables on: the carrying values of gratuity, pension and other post-retirement obligations and provisions.

The following assumption has been made in caleulating the sensitivity analyses;
- The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profii or loss item is the effect of the asswned changes i respective marKet risks. This 15 based on the financial assets and tizancial Labiligies held at March
31,2018 and March 31, 2017 including the effect af hedge accounting.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk avises from the sensitivity of financial assets and liabuies to changes én market rates of interest The Company seeks to mitigate such risk by entering into mterest rate derivative financiat
mstruments such as interest rate swaps or cross-vusmency infersst rate swaps. fitteres! raie swap agreements are ased o adjust the proportion of fotal debt, that are subject to variable and fixed interest rates

Under an interest rate swap agreertient, the Company either agrees 1o pay an amount equat to a specified Fxed-rate of interest sines 4 notional principal amount, and Lo receive in Teter an atmount equal 1o a
specified varigble-rate of interest times the same notional principal amowst or, vice-versa. (o receive a fixed-rate amount and to pay a variable-tate amount. The notional amounts of the contracts are not
exchainged. No other cash payments are made unless the agreement is terminated prior to waturity, in which case the amonnt paid or received in settlement is- established by agrcement at the time of
ternination, and usuaily represents the net present value, at corrent rates of intezest, of the remaining obligations to exchange payments ander the tenns of the contracl.

As at March 31, 2018 approximiately 49% of the Company's Borrowings are at fixed rate of interest {March 31,2087- 45 %)

Tnterest rate seasitivity
The following 1able demonstrates the sensitiviiy to a teasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With ali cther varizbles
held constant, the Corapany’s profi belore tax is affecled through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as rollows.




Awrvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2018
[ncrease i 50 basis points (1,73,89.756) 11.73.39.756)
Decrease in 50 basss points 5 1,73,89.756 1,73.89,756
March 31,2017
" Increase in 50 basis points (1,66,94,791) (1,66,94,791)
Brecrease in 50 basis points 1,66,94,701 1,66,94,791

Exrlusion from this analysis are as follpws:

- The effect of interest rate changes on future cash flows is excluded from this analysis.

Foreign currency risk .

Foreign currency risk is the tisk that the fair vakie or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in forcign exchange rates. The Company ransacts business in local currency and in
{oreyym currency, primarily in USD. The Company has obtained foreign currency loans and has foreign currency trade payables and receivables etc. and is, therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk. The
Company may use forward contracts, foreipn exchange options or currency swaps towards hedging risk resulting from changes and {luctuations in foreign currency exchange rate. These foreign cxchange
contracts, carricd at fair value, may have varying maturities varying depending upon the primary host contract requirements and risk tmanagement strategy of the company.

The: Company manages its foreign currcancy risk by hedging appropriate percentage of its foreign currency exposure, as approved by Board as per established sk imanageément policy. Details of the hedge &
unhedged position of the Company given m Note no 28

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the seusitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR, GBP and SEX rates to the functional curreacy of respective entity, with all other variables heid constant. The
Company’s exposure to foreiym currency changes for alf other currencies is not material, The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is dueto chanpes in the fair vafue of monctary assets and liabilities.
The impact en the Company’s pre-tax equity is due to changes in the f3ir value of foreign curtency monetary items designated as cash flow hedge.

Effécton pretax

March 31,2018 2% (64,15,549) (64,15,549)

-2% 64,15,549 64,15,549
March 31,2017 2% (28,82 493) (28,82.493)
2% 28,82.493 28,82.493

" Effecton pre-fa

March 31, 2018 2% {2,71,562) (2,71,562)

2% 2,71,562 2,71.562
March 31.2017 +1% (1,26,887) {1,26,887)
-2% 126,887 1,26,887

March 31, 2018 +2% (14,910) (14,910)
-2% 14,910 14,910
March 31, 2017 +2% (19,631) (19,631)
=2% 19.631 19,631
~




(b}
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Linited
Notes te the Financial Statemenis

‘The movement in the pre-lax effect is a result of a change in the fair value of financiat instnunents not destgnated in a hedpe relationship. Although the financiat instruments have not been designated 2
hedge relationship. they act as ar economic hedge and wili offset the underlying transactions when they oceur.

Credil risk
Credil risk is the risk that x counterpanty will not mect its cbligations under a financial instrument ot customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company s exposed to credit risk from ils operating
activities (primarily trade receivables} and trom its financing activities, wnwluding deposits with barks, forcign exchange transactions and ather financizf instruments,

Trade receivables

Customer credit 1isk 15 managed by each business unit subjec: to the Compiny's established pelicy, procedures and contio! relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables are nov-mterest
bearing and are generally on 15 days 1045 days credit tenn. Credit limits are established for all custoners based on internal rating criteria, Qutstanding customer receivables are regelarly monitored and any
shipments to major custsmers are generatly covered by letters of credit, The Company has no concentration of credit risk a5 the customer base is widely distributed both economically and geographically.

An impaisment analysis.is perforined at each feporting date on ax individual basis tor major clients. In addition, a large munber of minor receivables are grouped inte homnogenous proups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The zalculation is based on actual incurred historical data, The maximmn <xposure Lo credit risk 21 the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed its
Note §0. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as ils customers are located m several jurisdictions and
indnstries and opcrate in largely independent markets.

The requirement of impairment is analysed as each reporting date. Refer Note 7 for details oo the impairment of trade receivables.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with barks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s freasury department in accordance with the Company’s palicy. Investmemts of surplus funds are made only with
approved countetparties who meets the mimmum threshold regnirements under the sounterparly risk assessment process. The Cowpany monitors the ratings, credit spreads and financial strength of its
counterpartice. Based on its on-going assessment of connterparty risk. the group adjusts its exposure te various counterparties. The Company's imaximun exposure to credit risk for the ¢omponents of the
Balance sheet as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 s the carrying amoun as disclesed in Note 34.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able o meet its present and fisture cash and collateral obligations witheut incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's chiective is to, at all times
maintain optimutn Ievels of liquidity to meet ifs cash and collateral requirctnents, The Company closely menitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. [L maintaing adequate
sources of financing inctuding bilaterai loans, debt and ovérdraft from both domestic and international banks at an opiunised cost. It also enjoys strong aceess te domestic capital imarkets across cquity,

The talile below summerises the maturity protile of the Cumpan s financial dabilities based on contractuat undiscounted payments:

1onih:

Year ended March 31 2018

Interest bearing barrowings* - 4,39,19,38.827 306,31.84.043 84,05,16,056
Trade payables 4,01,78, 47,128 2,35,98,76,461 1.02,51.88,566 - -
Otler financial habilities# 59,39,57,705 5,80,41,983 2,58.00,033 4§,73,77,¢80 -

4.61,18,04,833 6,81.04,57,271 1,41.82,32,692 1.21,7943,237 -

Year ended March 31,2017

Interest bearing borrowings? 3,74,11,56,578 34,44,47,049 22,74,34.783 1,52,64,00,287
Trade payables 3,07.91,69.590 1,26,19,25,981 §1,34,63,394 -
Other financial habilities# 42,88,21,056 202,605 1,23,005 44.62,90,068
7,81,91,87,224 1.60,65,75.695 1.04,10.21,782 1.96,66,90,355 -

* Includes sontractual inferest paymient based on interest rate prevailing 1t the ead of the reporting period over the tenor of the horrewings.
# Other financial tiabitities includes interest accrued but not due o Rs.B.00,92,224 (March 31, 2017; 8,51,96,572 )




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 37 : Capital management _
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital meludes issued equity capital and all other equily reserves altnibutable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary obyective of the

Company’s capita! management 15 to ensure that.1f maintains an efficient capital structure and bealthy capital ratios m otder to support its business and maximise shareholder value

The Company manages its capital structure and inakes adjustments 1o-it in Tight of changes in cconomic conditions or its busircss requirements. Yo maintain or adjust the capital siructure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, returm capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company moniters capital using a gearing ratio, which is net dehi divided by {otas capital plus net debt.
The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and short-term depesits {including other bank balance}.

- Year ended March 31,2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Particulars N .
Amount in Rs. Ameuant in Rs.

Interest-béaring loans and borrowings 5,55;56 88,970 5,80,94,78,697

{Note 13}

Less: eash and cash equivalent (19.89,21,016) {22,24,07,827)

(including ether baak balance) {Note

n

Net debt $,35,67.,67,960 5,58.70,70.870

Equity share capitak (Note L 1) 81,27.87,230 54,39,70,030

Other equity (Note 12} 6,67,55,21,761 4,49.20,25,456

Toetal capital : 7,48.83,08.991 5.03,59,95,486

Capital and net debt 12,84,50,76.,951 10,62,30.66,356

Gearing ratio 2% 53%

In orderto achieve this overalt objective. the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing Ioans and borrowings that
define capital structure requiremnents. Breaches in meeting the finaricial covenants would penzit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of

any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or pracesses for managing capital during the years ended March 31,2018 and March 31, 2017

Loan covenants
Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company has complied with the tequired financial covenams througl: out the reporting periods.



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 38 : Share based payments

Arvind Fashions Limited, the holding company (AFL) has justituted Employee Stock Option Scheme 2016 (“ESOP 20 16™). Under
1280OP 2016 AFL, at its discretion, may graut sharc option to the senior employees of the Company. As on Marck 31,2018, AFL,
has granted 16,63,864 options and issued 38,269 options convertible into cqual gimber of Equity Shares of face value of 2-cach,
The following tabic sets forth the partiears of the options under ESOP 2616:

Expense arising from share- based payment transactions
Total expenses arising from share- based paynent transactions escogniséd in profit o loss a3 part of employes benefit CXPCHSE Were as

tollows :

Rupees
Pirticulais: e 2017-18; CAME1TE
Emplayee option plan 48,25,393 26.17,737
Total employec share based payment expense 48,25,393 26,17,757

Note 39 : Standards issued but not yet effective
The standurd issaed, bul not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Com pany’s {imncial statetients is disclosed below. The
Company intends to adopt this standard when it Becomes effective.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and sdvance consideration
The amendwent wilt cotne into force from 1 April 2018, The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the tmpeot on the financial statements.
The effect on adoption of ind AS 21 is expected (0 be insigniticant.”

Ind AS #15 - Revenue from contracts with customers

i March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs lios rotified the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 “amended rules”™). As per the
amended rules, Ind AS 133 “Revenuc from contracts with customers”™ supersedes Ind A8 11, “Construction contracts™ and [nd AS 18, “Revease™ and is applicable
for all accounting periods commenving on or after § April 2038,

Ind AS 115 introduees a new framework of five step model for the asmalysis of revenus Lransactions. The mode! specifies that revenue skould be recognised when
{0 as) an entify transfer control of goods or services to a customer at thie amount to which the entity expeets to be entitled. Further the new standard requires
enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertaitity of revenuc and cash flows arising from the enlity’s contracts with custotners, The new
feventie-stendard is applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.

The standard peemits two possible methods of teansition:
* Retrospeclive approack - Under this approach the standard will be applicd retrospectively 1o each prior reparting period presented in nccordance with Ind AS 8 -
Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors,

* Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial appfication (Cumulative catch - up approach).
The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the #mpact on the finanial statements. The elifect on adoption of Ind AS 115 is expected to be

insignificant”,

Note 40 : Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified
Tigures of the earlier year have been regrouped or reclassified 1o conform to Ind AS presentation requirements,

o



